House Education Committee

Minutes
2005




DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

CONVENE:

ORIENTATION:

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 12, 2005
9:00 AM
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trail,
Bradford, Block, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon,
Henderson, Kemp, Mathews, Nonini, Shepherd (8), Boe, Mitchell, Pence

None

Please see attached sign-in sheet with presenters highlighted.

Chairman Barraclough called the meeting to order at 9:05 a.m. with a
quorum present.

Chairman Barraclough welcomed members to the House Education
Committee. He emphasized that this was an important time in education
wherein they needed to preserve the good parts of education and
strengthen the areas that needed changes. He submitted the great strides
of the committee last year with charter school legislation, alternative
teacher certification, ISAT rules, the Idaho reading indicator, and fair
funding for the virtual academy. He was proud of the issues passed by the
House Education Committee.

He invited those who believed that education needed no changes to
please come visit with him as changes were vital. He noted national
studies on education: generally fourth graders ranked in the upper one-
third; eighth graders about mid-range; and twelfth graders in the lower
one-third.

To support and further strengthen education, he believed that the
guestion was not only money but performance. What happened in the
classroom and what the students were learning were paramount. He
remarked on two camps that evolved last session: one, the Senate
Education Committee with the State Department of Education and Idaho
Education Association; and two, the House Education Committee, the
Governor's Office, the State Board of Education, ldaho Association of
Commerce and Industry (IACI), House and Senate leadership, and the
Joint Finance and Appropriation Committee (JFAC). Chairman
Barraclough thought this division was crazy and dissuaded committee
members to continue this approach.

He proclaimed the will of the legislature was to improve education and not
just throw money at it. He remarked that an 8.4% increase in educational
funding may be more like 3-4%. Last year, $5M was saved in bus
transportation and was redirected into technology. Thus, he encouraged
the committee to look for ways to improve educational spending. In
another study, the Joint Legislative Oversight Committee showed that



non-classroom administrative costs in K-12 education increased double
over every other parameter. Yet a school in District 25 saved $3M in
administrative costs and went from accounting figures deep in the red to
black while getting good educational results.

Chairman Barraclough reminded the committee that budget dollars were
stretched by four major budget expenses: K-12 Education; Higher
Education; Health and Welfare with Medicaid; and Corrections. The
legislator’s task was how best to distribute the money. He would like this
committee of eighteen legislators to sense the responsibility and
opportunity to improve education in Idaho.

He commented, “Why was IACI involved in education?” He explained that
many high school graduates were not prepared for work. They need
remedial school work. Higher education was disappointed in K-12 as
more students need remedial education while higher education budgets
were cut. He quoted his campaign slogan: choice and accountability in
education.

He noted that the room was filled with powerful, wise people who could
influence the process. He welcomed them all to form a team removing
selfishness and fear. He remarked about a letter from a constituent that
presented fear tactics to influence the election of legislators who stood for
change in education. He affirmed that he would resist such tactics for this
committee.

Representative Kemp supported his position to remove the “bully”
approach with adults in education and work together to support Idaho
students.

Chairman Barraclough threw down a “steel fist with a velvet lining” in that
he was willing to work with everyone to accomplish these goals. He
wished to run an open, fair committee and promised not to lobby his
committee members. He hoped not to condemn or criticize ideas and
encourage all participants to do the same. Next, he invited each
committee member to share their backgrounds and goals for education.

Chairman Barraclough began by explaining that he had served in the
navy, graduated in engineering and hydrology from University of Idaho,
worked 35 years as a hydrologist and was first elected to office 13 years
ago. He had served on the Education, Resource and Environmental
Affairs, and JFAC. He had also served on national committees on
environment, energy and science, National Conference of State
Legislators, radio-active waste committees, Pacific Fisheries Management
Council, trustee on petroleum storage tank-clean water board, and co-
chairman of Environmental Common Sense Committee. Concluding, he
expressed his commitment and passion for improvement in education.

Vice-chairman Rydalch expressed pleasure in serving on this
committee. She had worked at INEEL and U.S. Department of Energy.
She served seven years on the ldaho senate and taught high school and
college classes. She recalled praying that high school students who came
to her classroom could read, but she often got students who could not
read at that level. This made her realize that the educational system
needed changing. She also issued a challenge to the committee, school

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2005 - Minutes - Page 2



boards, educators and parent-teacher organizations to concentrate on
teen suicide. She hoped they could synergically work to reduce teen
suicide in Idaho.

Representative Trail spoke of high interest in education having grown-up
in Moscow and attending University of Idaho. He attended graduate
studies at University of Maryland and Montana State University. He had
worked on overseas education projects and taught for 24 years at
Washington State University. He continued to serve as an educational
consultant. As a legislator, he had served on Commerce and Human
Resources, Agricultural Affairs and Education committees. He was a
strong advocate of public education and expressed admiration of the
Moscow Charter School and its success in offering choice and
accountability.

Representative Bradford described the great teachers and staff in his
area. He had served in the military, managed the family mink farm,
worked in private business and served as a county commissioner as well
as the state legislature. He recalled visiting a young man at the Idaho
State Penitentiary who said his greatest need was for more education. He
also talked about the need for education in poverty areas of Idaho, and
his desire to see more people attend local school board meetings.

Representative Block explained that she represented an urban/rural mix.
She was a K-4 teacher, business owner and mother. She was convinced
that the family was the most important part of education and that
education was the answer to many problems in our society, namely
health, welfare and prisons. She felt that better education equaled better
lives.

Representative Cannon briefly noted that he was pleased to serve on
this committee.

Representative Nielsen expressed his pleasure to serve a second term
on the House Education Committee and remarked that as a parent of
eight, he never missed a school activity with his children. He asked to
hear all aspects and groups regarding education and promised to do his
best to choose the best solutions.

Representative Shirley noted that he was new to this committee, yet he
brought to the table a career educator’s perspective having taught in
elementary to college classrooms and served as an educational
administrator. He noted his pride in seeing his former students now
teaching classes of their own. He hoped to bring unity and understanding
among the committee members and people working for education in
Idaho.

Representative Wills described using ventriloquism in the classrooms
and acclaimed the power of laughter in learning. He had worked as a law
enforcement officer. This was his first year on the House Education
Committee. He affirmed the need to dismiss “camps” and work
cohesively.

Representative Nonini acknowledged his freshman status on the

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2005 - Minutes - Page 3



committee. He noted many options for education today: traditional public
school; alternative high schools; charter schools; home schools; private
schools and virtual schools. Yet 90% of school were still public schools.
He commented on the importance of an educated workforce to business
and stated that he was an extreme fiscal conservative, sympathetic
towards teachers demands and believed that education started at home.

Representative Kemp held a business degree and taught English as a
second language. She noted that education was where it all began for
successful employment and life. Her goal was to listen and learn, and she
hoped to make Idaho’s educational system the best it can be,

Representative Henderson, a former technical writer and reporter,
talked about serving as mayor and county commissioner. He also worked
as an economic consultant in Eastern Europe and Russia,. He talked
about the social virtue and prominence of learned people in Hungary. He
noted that economic development was supported by varied, quality
education. He affirmed Chairman Barraclough’s goal of accountability and
choice.

Representative Mathews talked about the need for children to be
prepared for the future and the importance of parental involvement. He
encourage all to work to stamp out misinformation, be innovative, and
raise the bar for educational achievement. He commented on the need for
more positive press regarding education in Idaho and the need to solve
problems with the resources between our ears, not just with more money.

Representative Chadderdon recalled graduating in a class of sixteen
students and learning in a one-room school. She drew a comparison
between doctors and teachers: the former cared for the body; the latter
the mind. She hoped that education in Idaho would not be a partisan
issue, and she agreed with Representative Rydalch that warning signs of
teen suicide needed to be available in all schools.

Representative Shepherd talked about raising nine children and being
involved in a two-room school in rural Idaho. He stated, “What our schools
teach is what our society becomes.”

Representative Pence explained that she represented nine school
districts spanning the wealthiest to the poorest. She had taught in public
schools for 20 years. She remarked that Idaho schools served us well, but
could be better, especially vocational-technical training.

Representative Mitchell served in the Navy and after graduating from
the University of Oregon worked in journalism and advertising. He entered
public service in 1968 and served on JFAC for 10 years. He also served
on the State Board of Education, as chief-of-staff for Governor Andrus,
and many other committees and boards. His objective was to watch the
roles of the school boards and superintendents.

Representative Boe commented about serving in “great humility” on this
committee. Growing up in New Mexico, she learned firsthand how it felt to
not speak the language of your peers. She noted that low property tax
base made it difficult for schools in her district. She said that the children

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2005 - Minutes - Page 4



PRESENTATION:

were strong in math and science, yet weak in English and social studies.
She entered politics on the Pocatello city council, then served as mayor
and was now in her ninth year as a representative.

She agreed with the changes in education over the last few years and
hoped to hear all perspectives with respect and not take personal affronts.
She noted the need for access to all information before discussion in
committee and hoped to find better policies for Idaho education.

Chairman Barraclough noted the talent on this committee. He asked the
guests in the room to share ideas with low-scale lobbying. He expressed
regret in losing Karen Daniels, the committee secretary of five years, and
turned to welcome the new secretary, Kathy Ewert, and page for the first
half of the 58" session, Jill Page. Both gave a brief synopsis of their
backgrounds for the committee. He then reviewed protocol in the
committee room and asked Representative Rydalch to chair the review of
administrative rules.

Representative Rydalch divided the committee into two subcommittees for
administrative rules review as follows:

Subcommittee #1 members:
Rep. Rydalch - chair

Rep. Bradford

Rep. Cannon

Rep. Shirley

Rep. Chadderdon

Rep. Henderson

Rep. Nonini

Rep. Boe

Rep. Pence

Subcommittee #2 members:
Rep. Nielsen - chair

Rep. Trail

Rep. Block

Rep. Wills

Rep. Kemp

Rep. Mathews

Rep. Shepherd

Rep. Mitchell

Next Chairman Barraclough introduced Karen Echevarria, Idaho State
Board of Education, to summarize the rules before the committee.

Karen Echevarria gave a brief overview of the rule-making process and
summarized the rules before the committee as follows by docket numbers
and topics.

Docket #08-0301-0401 Alcoholic beverage use on public university
campuses

Docket #08-0202-0402 Alternative teacher certification guidelines (Ms.
Echevarria noted that this rule may have opposition.)

Docket #08-0202-0403 Standards for Idaho school buses

Docket #08-0202-0405 Professional standards for teachers

Docket #08-0202-0406 Commercial driving schools (Ms. Echevarria gave

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2005 - Minutes - Page 5



some background on the development of the commercial driving schools
rule and noted that this was a contentious rule to some.)

Docket #09-0202-0407 Public driving schools manual

Docket #08-0202-0408 Accreditation standards

Docket #08-0203-0409 Professional standards for out-of-state teacher
preparation programs

Docket #08-0203-0401 First year limited-English proficiency student
testing requirements

Docket #08-0203-0402 Clarify district/LEA sanctions for failing to meet
Adequate Yearly Progress under the federal law

Docket #08-0203-0403 English language proficiency standards
(Representative Nielsen inquired if there was any opposition on this rule.
Ms. Echevarria answered that there was none.)

Docket #08-0203-0404 clarify the Distinguished Schools Award criteria

Representative Cannon asked if the subcommittee had the authority to
decide rules? Chairman Barraclough explained that the subcommittees
made recommendation to the committee as a whole who voted on
approval/disapproval of a rule.

Representative Boe inquired about visiting school this session to which
Chairman Barraclough noted plans for visit Owyhee Elementary in Boise
as well as other schools. He also alerted the committee about four RS’s,
which they would hear next week.

ADJOURN: There being no further business before the committee, Chairman
Barraclough adjourned the committee at 11:15 AM.

Representative Jack Barraclough Kathy Ewert
Chairman Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 12, 2005 - Minutes - Page 6



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/

EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

CONVENE:

DOCKET NO.
08-0108-0301

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION SUBCOMMITTEE #1

January 17, 2005
9:00 AM
Room 406

Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Bradford, Cannon, Shirley,
Chadderdon, Henderson, Nonini, Boe, Pence

None

Representatives Trail, Nielsen, Kemp, Mathews, and Mitchell. Please
refer to the sign-in sheet for other guests and presenters. (Presenters are
highlighted.)

Chairman Rydalch called the meeting to order at 9:02 AM. She reminded
the committee that rules needed to be completed by the end of January.
She encouraged the members to talk with people in their districts to
ensure that the rules met their needs. She welcomed members present
from Subcommittee #2.

Alcohol on Public College/University Campuses

Karen Echeverria, Office of State Board of Education (OSBE), noted this
was the alcohol policy adopted last year by the OSBE. This rule governed
the possession, sale and consumption of alcohol on state college /
university campus grounds as well as facilities owned, leased or operated
by the college / university. The old rule required an OSBE waiver to have
alcoholic beverages on campus. This rule would grant the president of the
institution authority to issue permits for such activities under certain
conditions, i.e. within a confined area, age 21 for consumption, and non-
alcoholic beverages and food must also be served. The board received no
comments on the rule and recorded no outstanding issues.

Rep. Mitchell asked if this would be on any university-owned facility
either on or off campus? Ms. Echeverria agreed that it would apply to any
facility as long as the facility were owned by the university. Rep. Mitchell
then asked if fraternities and sororities were owned by the universities?
Ms. Echeverria said some facilities and land were owned by the fraternity
or sorority. However, thus far, these groups were complying with this
State Board policy. Rep. Mitchell then asked if those facilities could serve
alcohol? Ms. Echeverria said if a permit were requested from the
university president, then it would be so granted to the fraternity or
sorority.

Rep. Nonini asked if the sellers of the alcohol would be 21 years of age?
Ms. Echeverria agreed that licensed vendors and servers would be
required.

Rep. Boe asked how would the age limit be patrolled? Ms. Echeverria



DOCKET NO.
08-0202-0402

said that everyone allowed in the confined area must show proof of age to
be admitted.

Alternative Teacher Certification

Ms. Echeverria referred to the rule about computer-based alternative
teacher certification route. The federal No Child Left Behind Act required
that all teachers in public schools be highly qualified by the 2005-06
school year. Traditionally, districts would grant a waiver to use a
consultant specialist in classrooms when certified teachers could not be
hired. Currently over 200 consultant specialists taught in Idaho schools.
This alternative route for certification would be effective in 2006. This rule
would satisfy the requirements of the federal act. These rules were the
same as last years temporary rules and had been reviewed again during
multiple public meetings this year.

Rep. Mitchell questioned the role of the Department of Education in
crafting the rules? Ms. Echeverria affirmed the department’s participation
and said the rule was amended based upon their suggestions after the
last review meeting.

Rep. Trail noted other states having adopted alternative certification
guidelines and commented that some of his previous questions remained
unanswered regarding the ABCTE model of certification. Further, over
time he questioned the reliability of ABCTE-certified teachers in the
classroom? Ms. Echeverria apologized for the lack of reply and would
answer as soon as she received a copy of the questions.

Rep. Shirley inquired if the ABCTE candidates had to demonstrate their
teaching skills in a classroom setting? Allison McClintick, OSBE,
responded that the alternative route was a computer-based method and
currently the only model available to them. She commented on a new
$3M “transition to teaching” grant to facilitate alternative certification in
Idaho. She said that ABCTE did use on-line video trials with candidates
and master teachers cooperatively working in a classroom with students.

Chairman Rydalch wondered if the final decision for hiring laid in the
school board’s hands? Ms. McClintick answered affirmatively.

Rep. Boe asked what was structured mentoring and who paid for it? Ms.
MccClintick said ABCTE provided mentors or second year teachers, and
the candidate paid the fees.

Rep. Trail inquired if this rule applied to charter school: Yes.

Rep. Cannon wondered how this alternative would influence traditional
teacher education programs? Ms. McClintick said this route was never
intended to replace the university route, yet the schools needed a way to
bring current special instructors in the classroom into compliance with the
“highly qualified” clause of the No Child Left Behind Act.

To date, this route enabled principals to qualify individuals who had
demonstrated teaching ability as special teaching consultants, such as
community experts to teach in rural areas, secondary teachers to transfer

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2005 - Minutes - Page 2



DOCKET NO.
08-0202-0406

to the elementary classroom, charter schools to secure unique content
experts, or add content area for an existing certified teacher.

Rep. Shirley inquired about verifying the content expertise? Ms.
McClintick said that teacher’s presently took an examination in their areas
of proficiency. Also, the school administrator had the final decision on
employing alternatively certified teachers in the classroom.

Rep. Pence asked how an individual solicited alternative certification?
Ms. McClintick said the candidate would take a self-assessment test to
define the areas of deficiency and would be required to enroll in college
courses to remove any deficiencies.

Rep. Trail inquired about the drop-out rate from the profession for
alternatively certified teachers versus the normal college educated
teacher? Ms. McClintick had no information, but mentioned a study at
Arizona State University regarding mentoring being vital to alternative
certification.

Kathy Phelan, IEA, affirmed the need for training how to teach and
guestioned the alternative certification route to adequately train teachers
for classroom discipline, interaction and communication. She said
mentoring was completed “over the phone” and not applied to all areas.
On behalf of IEA, she asked for practice time in a classroom before
certifying using the ABCTE method and stated that the association
supported other alternative routes. This route did not work.

Commercial Driving Schools Manual

Ms. Echeverria summarized the lengthy public comment and review
period for this revised rule. To her knowledge, only section 1.8 regarding
“content standards and benchmarks” was questioned. Presently, the
manual for public schools driver education was in place for public and
commercial schools. This was an effort to address unique conditions of
the commercial schools.

Dallas Forester, a commercial driving school trainer, said he opposed
this rule for he believed it violated the equal protection and benefit under
the Idaho Constitution. He felt that one standard should apply to all types
of driving schools and objected to the OSBE controlling the commercial
driving schools. Mr. Forester submitted documents regarding the
regulation of Oregon and Washington driving schools.

Rep. Henderson asked what issues were a problem? Mr. Forester said
the monitoring of commercial schools was more intense than public
schools and the certification standards were not the same.

Rep. Kemp asked the OSBE for comment? Ms. Echeverria said that there
was significant difference between the two manuals because the
commercial schools originally objected to the manual utilized by the public
schools. If the committee rejected the rule, the standard would revert to
the 1996 manual and there would still be inequity between the two
groups.

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2005 - Minutes - Page 3



Chad Arnell, a commercial driving school trainer, welcomed governance,
but wanted fair, unbiased standards that did not place their competitor
into the chair of authority over the commercial programs. He asked the
committee to reject this rule and solicit a rule that would be governed by
Idaho Department of Transportation (ITD) or the Idaho State Police (ISP)
instead of the State Department of Education (SDE) under the OSBE.

Rep. Mitchell asked if the SDE or OSBE adopted these rules? Ms.
Echeverria said only the OSBE had the authority to adopt rules, but the
SDE enforced them. Of course, both governing entities along with
representatives of several commercial driving school participated in this
rule making process.

Rep. Kemp asked which rule was more strict? Ms. Echeverria could not
answer, but referred to Docket No. 08-02020407 that also needed
approval for public driver training schools.

Mike Arnell, Certified Fraud Examiner, was opposed to the rule making
process for this rule. He objected to two standards as well as OSBE
having governance. He suggested ITD or ISP. Chairman Rydalch
suggested such a change required legislation and encouraged Mr. Arnell
to seek resolution by presenting a bill to a committee.

Mike Ryals, commercial driving school representative, explained his
involvement in the rule making process as well as his frustration with not
receiving documents until the final rule. He felt the standards and
benchmarks took away his individual authority as an instructor by micro-
managing his business. He asserted that Dave Leroy thought the rule-
making process was flawed (a legal opinion letter by Dave Leroy was
supplied to the committee).

Dave Eiguren, president of the Association of Driver Educators, claimed
the driving school manuals read like an employee manual. He objected to
the OSBE and SDE having such control over a private business. He
described delays in licensing that reflected the standards and
benchmarks and about ever changing standards. He also objected to the
rule that in effect audited his business during re-licensing. He said that
commercial schools were only one-third of the schools, yet they received
two-thirds of the audits in Idaho. He strongly objected to one individual in
the SDE who “ran” the driver education programs for public and
commercial schools. He requested the whole rule be put on hold!

JoLynne Cavener, a Meridian commercial driving school representative,
objected to the rules for the past two years. She too objected to a one
person governance over the driving schools and the lack of voice in the
rule making process. She thought the SDE did not communicate with
commercial schools adequately and disliked the five-year licensing
requirement for commercial schools.

Rep. Henderson questioned the mention of an attorney’s view that the
rule making process was unlawful. Dave Leroy, Attorney at Law, testified
that he was asked to check section 1.8 in this rule. He felt that section
referring to content standards were not developed following IDAPA rule
making procedures because of their incorporation by “reference.” He

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2005 - Minutes - Page 4



provided a copy of his opinion in writing, which is attached here with.

Rep. Kemp reminded the committee that administrative rules review did
not need to review all policies and manuals included in the rule.

Rod McKnight, Department of Education Transportation Supervisor,
remarked on the controversial nature of this rule and noted that the
department would not object to ISP or ITD taking oversight. He felt that
the rule-making process had been followed appropriately.

The two subcommittee chairs conferred and agreed to allow
subcommittee one to continue their hearing and allow subcommittee two
to meet later.

Beth Weaver, Driver Education Specialist for the Department of
Education, testified about the difficulties in developing this rule. To her
knowledge, the Washington state method of oversight also had problems
and Oregon used one agency to govern both public and commercial
driving schools. She remarked that many comments on the rules were
vague and many differing ideas were presented by the commercial driving
schools. She was unaware of the problems with the content standards
and benchmarks. She said that these guidelines were not new and that
they were approved by ISP as well as satisfying national guidelines. She
informed the committee that Montana admired Idaho’s rules regarding
driver education schools and even duplicated them.

Rep. Shirley inquired if the public schools were concerned about micro-
management. Ms. Weaver did not think so.

Rep. Mathews asked about the lack of notification claimed by the
commercial driving schools during rule making. Ms. Weaver believed
adequate notification was used through web postings and copies
provided.

Chairman Rydalch wondered about the role of SDE related to the public
driving schools and the commercial driving schools. She also questioned
if the APA process had been circumvented by using the word “guidelines”
in the rule. Rep Nielsen referred to a pending rule before his
subcommittee Docket No. 08-0202-0407 about the public driving schools
manual. A discussion followed to understand the implementation dates for
both schools to be November 12, 2004 if these two rules were approved.

ADJOURN: Chairman Rydalch adjourned the subcommittee at 11:10 AM.
Representative Ann Rydalch Kathy Ewert
Subcommittee Chairman Secretary

Representative Jack Barraclough

Chairman

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 17, 2005 - Minutes - Page 5



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/

EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

CONVENE:

MINUTES:

PRESENTATION:

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 18, 2005
9:00 AM
Room 406

Chairman Barraclough, Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trail,
Bradford, Block, Cannon, Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon,
Henderson, Kemp, Mathews, Nonini, Shepherd (8), Boe, Mitchell, Pence

Rep. Rydalch and Rep. Block

Dr. Tim Hill, Department of Education, and guests as listed on the
attached sign-in sheet

Chairman Barraclough welcomed the committee and convened the
meeting at 9:00 AM.

Rep. Wills moved to accept the minutes of January 12 with one
modification on page 3. The minutes as amended were approved by voice
vote.

Chairman Barraclough advised the committee that education was the
largest component of the state budget. He noted that the Department of
Education proposed $80M more this year, whereas the Governor
recommended $34M more. He asked the committee to assist JFAC in
wrestling with the allocation of funds. He then introduced Tim Hill,
Department of Education, to explain the equity funding formula used in
Idaho to distribute funds.

Tim Hill, Bureau Chief of Public School Services, Department of
Education, defined $2.18M FY2005 general fund dollars of which over
40%was for K-12 education in Idaho. He explained the JFAC
appropriation generally was less than revenue to allow for unexpected
budget expenses during the year and that education accounted for
approximately 60% of the state budget. Looking at the nearly $500M per
year in tax revenues, he noted the percentages from individual income
tax, sales tax, corporate tax and all other revenue. He showed trends in
educational spending in which public school spending had dropped about
3% where as Health and Welfare grew by about 4% and public safety
increased by over 3% over the past ten years. He expressed concern that
revenue and appropriations were out-of-balance with the use of one-time
moneys and tax rate changes.

Mr. Hill demonstrated charts of general maintenance and operations
expenditures by budget object from FY2003 with 85% of each dollar being
spent on salary and benefits in education. He noted that education was
basically a service industry accounting for this allocation. He then
discussed public school staffing expenditures by full time equivalent and
dollars explaining that the classified staff consisted of many part-time



ADJOURN:

employees combined to sum a full time equivalent. He stated that in
FY2004, school districts hired 14,003 instructional, 1,272 student
services, 724 school administration and 375 district administration full-
time equivalent staff.

Next, Mr. Hill described the State Board of Education’s rules regarding
teacher/student ratios at each grade level and staffing for specialized
educational classroom. He noted three classes of staff: instructors /
teachers, administrators and support staff. Next he reviewed rules
governing administration in public schools, ch. 1, 08.02.01 which explains
the minimum instructional time per grade level. He noted that kindergarten
required fewer hours than 9-12 and at-risk students instructional time was
counted by the hour of attendance for funding purposes. From this he
explained the apparent diversity among school districts in staffing ratios
based on student population, who was being taught, and who was hired
to teach.

He explored the variance in district attendance days and how each
adjusted the days to meet the attendance standards. He explained the
computation of support units using average daily attendance and
formulated attendance divisors. Next, he delved into salaries based on
experience and education multipliers (“steps and lanes”) and the state’s
full funding of the minimum base salary of $27,500. Using the average
daily attendance, salary multipliers, and statewide averages, he illustrated
a hypothetical average elementary and secondary personnel budget.

On the revenue side, Mr. Hill showed the distribution of local property tax /
replacement tax and state funding in education. This equalization
accounted for adjusted market values and how they impacted state
funding to a district. He noted that some expenses were not included in
this equalization, such as bus transportation and maintenance.

Next, Mr. Hill broke out the FY2003-04 and FY2004-05 K-12
appropriations by appropriation source, total revenues, support units,
equalization and the distribution factor for discretionary dollars. He
explained “angel money” as a pool to be used if there were a shortage in
revenue or savings if an overage. He also explained the timing of
distributions of educational dollars in 5-6 payments during the year. He
noted that the August, October and November distributions were based
on prior year attendance data which could negatively impact a school
district if enrollment deviated. He then illustrated a sample school budget
and how a ration of the total state budget was calculated for each school
district.

Rep. Mathews inquired if the department had any demographics on
population shifts? Mr. Hill said they did not keep census data, but their
student attendance data mirrored population shifts.

Rep. Boe announced a Joint Legislative Oversight Committee report on
technology in schools to be held on Thursday, January 20, on the second
floor of the Borah Building.

There being no further business before the committee, Chairman
Barraclough adjourned at 10:27 AM.

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 18, 2005 - Minutes - Page 2



Representative Jack Barraclough Kathy Ewert
Chairman Secretary

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 18, 2005 - Minutes - Page 3



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

CONVENE:

PRESENTATION:

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

January 19, 2005
9:00 AM
Room 406

Vice Chairman Rydalch, Representatives Trail, Bradford, Block, Cannon,
Nielsen, Shirley, Wills, Chadderdon, Henderson, Kemp, Mathews, Nonini,
Shepherd (8), Boe, Mitchell, Pence

Chairman Barraclough

Dr. Robert Kustra, President at Boise State University, and other guests,
as listed on the attached sign-in sheet, were present. (See presenters
checked or highlighted on the attached sign-in sheet.)

Vice-chairman Rydalch called the meeting to order at 9:03 AM. She
announced a meeting for subcommittee #2 on Thursday and no meetings
for either subcommittees or the committee as a whole on Friday.

Dr. Robert Kustra proclaimed this year to be a great one for Boise State
University (BSU) not only in football, but in academic development and
collaboration among all public institutions of higher education in Idaho.

He introduced his staff in attendance and efforts for BSU to go “Beyond
the Blue”-a mission to improve academic quality in program offerings,
faculty, and quality of students. He asserted that it was not enough for
BSU to be just an undergraduate institution. The addition of graduate and
research programs helped draw and retain higher caliber professors. He
described a retention task force at BSU that was trying to identify why 35-
40% of freshman students left school. He hoped to rescue these at-risk
students by providing programs that served their needs better.

Dr. Kustra explained the funding balance at BSU of one-third each from
the state, students and donors. He spoke of soliciting research-quality
faculty through endowed share professorships. During the past year, BSU
had generated research funding of nearly $21M, such as in study of
breast cancer and Alzheimer’s Disease.

To attract good students, Dr. Kustra described the Capital Scholars
Program which would offer $1,000 scholarships to top high school juniors
who would attend BSU. He also unveiled plans to make BSU a national
merit scholars institution using funds from the sale of the donated
university presidential residence.

To address the less academically qualified students, Dr. Kustra proposed
BSU supporting a southwest Idaho community college. This effort would
begin with BSU offering community college-type classes at its West
Campus in Nampa focusing on a technical curriculum and English as a
second language. Later this program would separate using state and



donor funding as it expanded its community college offerings.

Turning to business needs in the metropolitan area, BSU would offer an
Executive MBA next fall. This program would offer non-traditional hours
and days for classroom instruction as well as utilize computerized
education.

Dr. Kustra emphasized the importance of honesty in pricing regarding
tuition and fees. Since higher education used both to help finance
instructional time, he felt that all charges should be simply classified as
“tuition.” In the same breath, he asked the legislature to give the
universities flexibility in utilizing funding.

Rep. Trail inquired about salary considerations for the “worker bees”
(staff) at BSU? Dr. Kustra noted that the classified staff served two
masters: the State and BSU. He informed them of non-dollar resolutions
on campus that were improving classified workers’ morales. He stated
that last year, BSU added 2% to their employee salaries taking the funds
from other appropriated dollars, and they moved some employees to
policy salary levels. He said that he was proud of their classified staff and
were endeavoring to continue improving their work conditions.

Rep. Boe asked if the proposed community college would offer remedial
classes and how the university planned to finance the programs? Dr.
Kustra explained a two-year transfer credit program at the community
college campus. To lower instructional costs, they planned to employ a
cost-center approach where non-doctoral faculty and community
workforce experts would be teaching.

Rep. Boe then inquired if county dollars would be used? Dr. Kustra
answered that once established, the community college would not be
funded with property tax dollars, but with student, state and outlying area
revenues.

Vice-Chairman Rydalch questioned if the curriculum would enhance the
high school professional-technical programs? Dr. Kustra explained efforts
to link with the Boise School District’s vocational-technical school and
possiblely take advantage of land adjacent to that campus for the
community college vo-tech program. He added that he saw the proposed
community college not as a single brick-and-motor institution, but as a
distributed campus, a collage of facilities in various location. He also
foresaw the community college also offering junior and senior college-
level classes as an extended campus to the university.

Vice-chairman Rydalch further inquired about efforts to integrate science,
technology and research into the private sector? Dr. Kustra replied that
the three Idaho universities had received a $16,000 biomedical research
grant that would facilitate this effort. He supported the Governor’s efforts
to get research and technology transferred to Idaho economy.

Continuing, Vice-chairman Rydalch wondered about using federal money

to feed commercial efforts? Dr. Kustra felt that the university should help
entrepreneurs to market products.

Rep. Nielsen wanted to know about computerized math and if the

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 19, 2005 - Minutes - Page 2



RS 14400C2

university would be enlarging that curriculum? Dr. Kustra said that was a
priority because the courses were so successful. Unfortunately, the
university had limited funds to purchase the equipment.

Rep. Cannon spoke of a discussion with student who described incurring
over $20,000 debt to graduate from college. He asked if it were possible
to lighten this financial load? Dr. Kustra agreed that it was the student’s
responsibility to fund their own education for they were the beneficiary of
this investment. The university would help those with marginal economic
capabilities. He then raised the question of increasing educational costs
losing more students who may opt for short-term paychecks.

Rep. Mitchell inquired if donor dollars were included in the funding
formula used by BSU? Dr. Kustra explained that the donor third-leg of
BSU funding did include research and grant funds as well. He also
explained that the undergraduate and graduate programs were combined
in their student funded figures.

Rep. Kemp questioned if BSU was asking for a constitutional amendment
to grant certain spending latitude to the university? Dr. Kustra replied that
they originally thought to do so, but they believed statutory changes would
suffice.

Rep. Shirley probed into the growing length of time to graduate from
college? Dr. Kustra responded that they hoped to explore this problem in
a retention task force. This task force would investigate ways to solve
retention problems. He suggested increasing the full-time credit hour
minimum to 12 credit hours to shorten “through-put time.” He also talked
about changing the undergraduate culture on campus by teaching more
evening and weekend courses. He acknowledge that despite these
efforts, some students required more years to graduate due to work and
family obligations.

Rep. Nielsen inquired if incoming freshmen were adequately prepared for
college-level courses? Dr. Kustra noted that some needed remedial math.
To remedy this deficiency, he suggested requiring a fourth year of math
or, at the least, math during the senior year to keep students prepared for
college math demands. He suggested modifying the graduation
requirements or using on-line math courses.

Rep. Mathews wondered how well the university addressed medium-
sized business needs in Idaho? Dr. Kustra explained course offerings at
various business locations to satisfy specific business functions. One
such example was BSU and local hospitals providing clinical practice for
nurses.

Rep. Pence inquired about use of advanced placement credit at BSU?
Dr. Kustra said the university favored advanced placement studies in high
school to help accelerate students through college. However, he
acknowledged that many rural schools had difficulty offering these
courses.

Contract redistribution and adds EITC

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 19, 2005 - Minutes - Page 3



MOTION:

RS14406

MOTION:

RS14448

MOTION:

RS14509

MOTION:

ADJOURN:

Dana Kelly, Office of the State Board of Education (OSBE), explained the
time factor problem and variance in requirements between teacher / nurse
contracts as well as the need for Eastern Idaho Technical College (EITC)
to be included. She noted how this RS would amend the statute to
maximize contracts by bring consistency between the teacher and nurse
contracts and adding EITC.

Rep. Cannon moved to introduce RS14400C2. Rep. Shirley second the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

Higher education policy re employee removal

Karen Echeverria, Office of the State Board of Education, described how
this RS would bring all state institutions of higher education under the
same guidelines for removal of an employee.

Rep. Mitchell moved to introduce RS144406. Rep. Trail second the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

Dana Kelly, OSBE, described the proposed statute amendment for the
“Freedom Scholarships” making them more like the scholarships for
dependents of public safety officers and authorizing the OSBE to review
applications for both scholarships.

Rep. Cannon moved to introduce RS14448. Rep. Mathews second the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

Harvey Lyter, Superintendent at Idaho School for the Deaf and the Blind
(ISDB), described a statutory problem with salaries and benefits for the
non-classified employees and how this RS would enable the institution to
more efficiently use year-round pay schedules for all its employees. He
noted support for this RS by DFM, SCO, OSBE and ISDB and explained
that their would be no changes to the institution’s budget.

Rep. Mitchell moved to introduce RS14509. Rep. Shirley second the
motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

There being no further business before the committee, Vice-chairman
Rydalch adjourned at 10:57 AM.

Representative Ann Rydalch Kathy Ewert

Vice-chairman

Secretary

Representative Jack Barraclough

Chairman

HOUSE EDUCATION
January 19, 2005 - Minutes - Page 4



DATE:

TIME:

PLACE:

MEMBERS:

ABSENT/

EXCUSED:

GUESTS:

CONVENE:

DOCKET NO.

08-0202-0403

MOTION:

DOCKET NO.
08-0202-0405

MOTION:

DOCKET NO.
08-0202-0408

MINUTES

HOUSE EDUCATION SUBCOMMITTEE #2

January 20, 2005
9:00 AM
Room 406

Subcommittee Chairman Nielsen, Representatives Trail, Bradford,
Chadderdon, Henderson, Kemp, Mathews, Shepherd (8), Mitchell, Pence

Rep. Wills

Please see attached sign-in sheet with presenters highlighted.

Subcommittee Chairman Nielsen called the meeting to order at 9:02 AM
and announced the library display in the rotunda. He encouraged the
members to openly hear all testimony for the rules.

Standards for Idaho School Buses

Rodney McKnight, State Department of Education (SDE), described a
study by the Office of Performance Evaluation and how this rule would
clarify language in the rules to standardize and eliminate contradictions in
the former rules. During rule making, he noted no objections to this rule
and support by the Office of the State Board of Education (OSBE).

Rep. Kemp noted no objections to the rule and recommended approval
by the general committee. The motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

Subcommittee Chairman Nielsen moved Docket No. 08-0202-0407
regarding Public Driving Schools Manual to the end of the agenda.

Professional Standards for Teacher

Patty Toney, SDE, explained the exclusion in this rule of the special
education teacher standards and asked the committee to approved these
revisions, which align the standards with best practices in the industry.

The subcommittee inquired if this was an incorporation of standards by
reference denoted by date? Ms. Toney replied affirmatively.

Rep. Pence noted no objections to the rule and recommended approval
by the general committee. The motion passed by unanimous voice vote.

Accreditation of public schools and districts

Jana Jones, SDE, noted these rules eliminated the four accreditation
options currently in Board rule and made all schools and districts meet the
same high standards of state accreditation. In this rule, districts would be
required to develop and implement district-wide strategic plans and



MOTION:

DOCKET NO.
08-0202-0409

MOTION:

DOCKET NO.

schools to develop continuous school improvement plans. Each would
align and focus on improving school and staff capacity to increase student
achievement. Both would be required to report progress and attainment of
the plans and standards.

A lively discussion followed exploring the following:

1. Was the Board intending to require a national accreditation? The
accreditation relied upon the school plan that would employed universal
standards, such as the Northwest Accreditation Standards. Schools might
also independently apply for the Northwest Accreditation Standards
certificate when they satisfied six parameters in the school.

2. Was there an estimated cost to school and districts to produce their
plans? At that time, there were no projected costs as they allowed the
schools/districts to develop their plans in various ways.

3. Were some schools already working on their plans? Yes, they were
developing plans under a 10-year cycle which would change to 5 years.
The accreditation commission would also facilitate these plans with
reviews and comments.

4. Who would provide nominees for the review commission? The State
Department of Education would present names to the Board for approval.

Rep. Mitchell suggested that it would be beneficial to add who would be
responsible to nominate accreditation committee personnel.

5. What was the overall goal of this rule change? Focusing on student
achievement was the main goal as achieved through adjustments in the
learning environment and academic progress.

Subcommittee Chairman Nielsen remarked that he was concerned
about high school graduates entering college needing reme